
Sierra County Commission 
Administration Building 

1712 N Date St, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901 
Tuesday June 25th, 2024 

ALL MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC WILL BE ABLE TO WATCH AND LISTEN TO THE MEETING VIA: 
(https://www.facebook.com/profile.php?id=100068317226897) (Local radio KCHS 101.9) 

Call to Order: 10:00 AM Regular Meeting 

Roll Call:   Travis Day-Chairman  Shelly K. Trujillo-Clerk 
James E. Paxon-Vice-Chair  Nance, Pato & Stout, LLC-Attorney 
Hank Hopkins -Commissioner  Amber Vaughn-County Manager 

Pledge of Allegiance 

New Mexico State Flag Pledge-I salute the flag of the State of New Mexico and the Zia symbol of perfect 
friendship among united cultures. 

Introduction of Guests 

I. Approval of Agenda
II. Approval of Minutes

A. Regular Meeting –May 21st, 2024
B. Special Meeting – June 12th, 2024

III. Public Comment: Limited to 3 Minutes
IV. Consent Agenda:

A. Resolution No. 110-249 Accounts Payable
B. Resolution No. 110-250 Indigent Claims
C. Indigent Burial B2024-008
D. Claim of Exemption 24-004 (Griffin et al)

V. Presentations/Reports:
A. Years of Service Awards
B. Department Reports

VI. Board of Finance:
A. May Reconciliation

VII. Old Business:
VIII. New Business:

A. Road Vacation Request – Partial vacation of Tularosa Road near Engle
B. Sheriff’s Department Proposal for Added Position
C. Hazard Mitigation Plan
D. Approval of Gift/Transfer of a 2003 Ford E-350 Type Ill Ambulance from LAS Palomas EMS

to the NM State University Foundation on behalf of Oona Ana Community College,
Emergency Medical Services Division

IX. Contracts-Agreements-Procurement:
A. Hillsboro Community Center-HVAC SYSTEM-CES-TREMCO/WTI
B. WAGNER/CAT FINANCIAL-SOURCEWELL-Lease Agreements/Road



 
C. State of New Mexico Department of Finance and Administration Local Government Division 

DWI Grant Program – DWI Grant Agreement Program NO. 25-D-G-28 
X. Resolutions-Ordinances-Proclamations: 

A. Resolution 110-251 Budget Adjustments 
B. Resolution 110-252 Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan 
C. Resolution 110-253 Recognizing the Sierra County Behavioral Health and Wellness 

Collaborative (SCBHWC) as the Recognized Health Council 
D. Resolution 110-254 CAP 25 Participation in Local Government Road Fund Program and 

Request for Match Waiver Administered by New Mexico Department of Transportation 
E. Resolution 110-255 SB 25 Participation in Local Government Road Fund Program and 

Request for Match Waiver Administered by New Mexico Department of Transportation 
F. Resolution 110-256 SP 25 Participation in Local Government Road Fund Program and 

Request for Match Waiver Administered by New Mexico Department of Transportation 
XI. Executive Session (Section 10-15 E thru H): 

Pending and Threatened Litigation: 
A. In re Emergency Petition for an Order Directing the Submission of the Question of the 

Organization of the Sierra County Arroyo Flood Control District to the Qualified Electors of 
Sierra County and to Declare the District Organized if Approve by the Voters of Sierra 
County, D-721-MS-2024-00001 

B.  Ashleigh Coulter v. Sierra County Assessor’s Office 
Personnel 
Real Estate: 

XII. Open Session Actions from Executive Session:  
A. Adjourn 
 

 
Next proposed Scheduled Meeting: Regular Meeting, Tuesday, July 23rd, 2024, at 10:00 AM. Items for 
the agenda must be submitted to the Sierra County Administration Office no later than 5:00pm on the 
Monday the week before the meeting. 
 

 
If you are an individual with a disability who is in need of a reader, amplifier, qualified sign language 
interpreter, or any other form of auxiliary aid or service to attend or participate in the hearing or 
meeting please contact the Sierra County Manager, at 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, New 
Mexico 87901, phone (575) 894-6215 at least one (1) week prior to the meeting or as soon as possible.  
Public documents, including the agenda and minutes, can be provided in various accessible formats. 
Please contact the Sierra County Manager if a summary or other type of accessible format is needed. 
 
 



 

      
          SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
        MAY 21, 2024 

 
   

CALL TO ORDER:   10:00 am Regular Meeting  
 

The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Regular Session 
at 10:00 A.M. on Tuesday, May 21, 2024, at the Albert J Lyon Event Center, 
2953 S Broadway, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 
 

 ROLL CALL: 
 

 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
            Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair 
 Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
  
 Clerk of Board: Shelly K. Trujillo  
             
 County Attorney: David Pato 
           
 County Manager: Amber Vaughn 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 
 
NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 
 
ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 
  
 Jessica West, Tim Kuzdrowski, Ted Kuzdrowski, Ernie Armijo, Mike 
Hearn, Billy Neeley, Ruben Lucero, Jose Rios, Ray Pierce, Patrice Love, 
Jocelyn Holguin 
     

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the agenda as presented.  
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 
 
A. Regular Meeting-April 16, 2024 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the minutes as amended.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.  



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
May 21, 2024 
Page 2   

 

 
III. PUBLIC COMMENT: LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES 
 Sonya Palacios-PHI Air Medical-See Attached 
 
IV. CONSENT AGENDA: 

 
A.  Resolution No. 110-241- Accounts Payable 
 
B.  Resolution No. 110-243- Indigent Claims 
 
C.  Indigent Burial B2024-007 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the Consent Agenda as 
presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

V. PRESENTATIONS/REPORTS: 
 
A.  Years of Service award 
B.  Department Reports 
 

VI. BOARD OF FINANCE: 
 

A.  April Reconciliation 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the April Reconciliation 
as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes.  

 
VII. OLD BUSINESS: 

 
VIII. NEW BUSINESS: 

 
A.  Petition for Road Vacation: Appointment of Sharon Luna, LaNeer Wrye 

and Bruce Swingle as Freeholders to View the Request to Vacate a Portion of 
Tulalosa Rd near Engle with Ronnie Chavez and Travis Luna as an 
Alternate  

 
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Petition for Road Vacation: 

Appointment of Sharon Luna, LaNeer Wrye and Bruce Swingle as 
Freeholders to View the Request to Vacate a Portion of Tulalosa Rd near 
Engle with Ronnie Chavez and Travis Luna as an Alternate as presented.  
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion. Motion carries with 
Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
B.  Donation of Bullard Tac Sight S1 Thermal Imager to Catron County 

Sheriff’s Office 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
May 21, 2024 
Page 3   

 

 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the Donation of Bullard 
Tac Sight S1 Thermal Imager to Catron County Sheriff’s Office as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
C.  Land Use Updates 
 
 Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to Move Forward with the Land 
Use Update Process.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  
Motion carried with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 

     
IX. CONTRACTS – AGREEMENTS – PROCUREMENT 

 
A.  Audit Contract FY 23/24-Patillo, Brown & Hill, LLP 
   
   Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Audit Contract FY 23/24-

Patillo, Brown & Hill, LLP as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon 
SECONDED the motion. Motion carries with Commissioners District 1-2-3 
voting yes. 

 
B.  ITB #2024-03-017-855 Van Patten Interior Remodel-Awarded Low Bid-RY 

Construction, LLC 
 

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the ITB #2024-03-017-
855 Van Patten Interior Remodel-Awarded Low Bid-RY Construction, LLC 
as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion 
carried with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
C.  Work and Financial Plan between Sierra County and United States 
Department of Agriculture Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service 
Wildlife Services (APHIS-WS) for July 1, 2024-June 30, 2025 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the Work and Financial 
Plan between Sierra County and United States Department of Agriculture 
Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service Wildlife Services (APHIS-WS) 
for July 1, 2024-June 30, 2025, as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins 
SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioners District 1-2-3 
voting yes. 
 
D.  Memorandum of Understanding between Office of the Secretary of State 
and Sierra County 
 
 
 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
May 21, 2024 
Page 4   

 

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Memorandum of 
Understanding between Office of the Secretary of State and Sierra County as 
presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion. Motion 
carries with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 

 
X. RESOLUTIONS – ORDINANCES – PROCLAMATIONS 

 
A.  Resolution No. 110-242-Budget Adjustment 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-242-
Budget Adjustment as presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the 
motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
B.  Resolution No. 110-244-A Resolution Confirming Sierra County to 
Participate in the New Mexico Department of Transportation Project Fund 
Call for Projects-Sugar Sand Bridge  
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-244-A 
Resolution Confirming Sierra County to Participate in the New Mexico 
Department of Transportation Project Fund Call for Projects-Sugar Sand 
Bridge as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the 
motion. Motion carries with Commissioners District 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
C.  Resolution 110-245-A Resolution Appointing Members of County 
Valuation and Protest Board 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution 110-245-A 
Resolution Appointing Members of County Valuation and Protest Board as 
presented.  Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried 
with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
D.  Resolution No. 110-246-Adopting FY 25 Preliminary Budget 
 
Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve Resolution No. 110-246-
Adopting FY 25 Preliminary Budget as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair 
Paxon SECONDED the motion. Motion carries with Commissioners District 
1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
E.  Resolution 110-247-Accepting and Approving the FY 2022-23 Audit 
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Resolution 110-247-
Accepting and Approving the FY 2022-23 Audit as presented.  Commissioner 
Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner 
Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 
F.  Proclamation Proclaiming May to be Motorcycle Awareness Month 



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
May 21, 2024 
Page 5   

 

 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve Proclamation 
Proclaiming May to be Motorcycle Awareness Month as Amended.  
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with 
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes. 
 

  XI. EXECUTIVE SESSION SECTION (10-15-E THRU H): 
 
   Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to go into Executive Session for 

Personnel, Real Estate, Pending and Threatened Litigation.  Commissioner 
Hopkins SECONDED the motion. Roll call vote was taken with all 
Commissioners present voting yes.   
 
            District 1 – Yes 
 District 2 – Yes 
 District 3 – Yes 

 
            PENDING AND THREATENED LITIGATION: 
 

1. BoCC v. Desert Springs Produce, LLC 
                                                                
           PERSONNEL: 
      
            REAL ESTATE:  
 
            DISPOSAL OF REAL PROPERTY 
 
            XII. OPEN SESSION ACTIONS FOR EXECUTIVE SESSION: 
 

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to come back into Regular Session.  
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon SECONDED the motion.  Roll call vote was 
taken, with all Commissioners present voting yes. 

 
 

 DATE AND TIME OF NEXT REGULAR SIERRA COUNTY 
COMMISSION MEETING:  
 
The date and time of the next Regular Sierra County Commission Meeting 
has been scheduled for Tuesday, June 25, 2024, at 10:00 A.M. at Sierra 
County Commission Chambers, 1712 N Date Street, Truth or Consequences, 
New Mexico.   
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to adjourn the meeting. 
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.    
 
ADJOURNMENT:  



Sierra County Commission Regular Meeting 
May 21, 2024 
Page 6   

 

 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission 
Chair Day adjourned the meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this 21st day of May 2024. 
 
 

 
 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 
 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 

Commissioner James E Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Shelly K Trujillo, County Clerk 
 
 

   
 



          SIERRA COUNTY COMMISSION 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

        JUNE 12, 2024 

CALL TO ORDER: 10:00 A.M. 

The Sierra County Board of County Commissioners met in Special Session at 
10:00 A.M. on Wednesday, June 12, 2024, at the Sierra County Commission 
Chambers, 1712 N Date, Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 

ROLL CALL: 

Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
            Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chair 

Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 

Clerk of Board: Shelly Trujillo  

County Attorney: Dave Pato-Absent 

County Manager: Amber Vaughn 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

NEW MEXICO STATE FLAG PLEDGE: 

ALSO IN ATTENDANCE: 

Jessica West 

I. APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to approve the agenda as presented.
Commissioner Hopkins SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with
Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 voting yes.

II. PUBLIC COMMENT-LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES

III. NEW BUSINESS

A. Canvassing the Results of the 2024 Primary Election

Commissioner Hopkins MOVED to approve the Canvassing the Results of 
the 2024 Primary Election as presented.  Commission Vice-Chair Paxon 



Sierra County Commission Special Meeting 
June 12, 2024 
Page 2   

 

SECONDED the motion.  Motion carried with Commissioner Districts 1-2-3 
voting yes. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  
 
Commission Vice-Chair Paxon MOVED to adjourn.  Commissioner Hopkins 
SECONDED the motion. 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, Commission 
Chair Day adjourned the meeting.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sierra County Commission Special Meeting 
June 12, 2024 
Page 3   

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dated this 12th day of June, 2024. 
 
 

 
 
 
 SIERRA COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 
 Commissioner Travis Day, Chairman 
 
 ________________________________________________________ 

Commissioner James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
________________________________________________________ 
Commissioner Hank Hopkins, Member 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
Shelly K Trujillo, County Clerk 

   
 









































































































































































































































































  4/16/2024  15:34:47 SIERRA COUNTY ASSESSOR                Year 2024 QPADEV0001

 0001618 Dist 6 OT                                     0 Centrl     115362 Full 

 WOOLF-SMYTH MAECI & WOOLF RONALD & FinCo          10521 Land        38454 Txbl 

 WOOLF FRED & WOOLF STEPHEN B                     104841 Impr            0 Exmpt

                                                       0 P.P.                   

 507 N CABALLO RD                                      0 M.H.        38454  Net 

 T OR C               NM 87901                         0 Livstk                 

 Pos to()                                                              Print=Y  

 Property Description                Code ValueDesc  Quantity     Rate      Full

 4 009 079 147 170                   122  GRZ 2.25     191.54                606

 1793 TULAROSA RD                    101  H-SIT-R.       1.00               9915

 BOOK 92 PG 4430                     201N BLD RES N                        16245

 SECTION-28  TOWNSHIP-12S  RANGE-02E 203C ACC BLDG                          7785

 NE4SW4,NW4                          201C SNRESBLDC                        80811

 QCD BK 92 PG 4430                              Res-Values N/R-Values Tot-Values

                                      Full          114756        606     115362

                                      Taxable        38252        202      38454

                                      Exempt             0          0          0

                                      Net            38252        202      38454

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                                

                                                                         Bottom 

 F3=Cancel  F4=Prompt()  F6=Chg Yrs  F12=Return                                 





RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT 
 
Maeci Woolf-Smyth, Ronald Woolf, Fred Woolf, and Stephen B. Woolf, for consideration 
provided, the sufficiency of which is hereby expressly recognized, grant to the County of 
Sierra a perpetual easement and right of way along, over and across a portion of the 
following described real estate situate in Sierra County, New Mexico, as depicted and 
highlighted on the attached map marked as Exhibit A, to use the same as a roadway for 
emergency purposes: 
 
A parcel of land being the NW1/4 and the NE1/4 of the SW1/4 of Section 28, Township 
12 South, Range 2 East, of the N.M.P.M., located in Sierra County, New Mexico, being 
more particularly described as follows, to-wit;  
 
Beginning at the NW Corner, 
 
Thence, NE, 88º01’53”, a distance of 2542.35 feet; 
Thence, SW, 01º37’20”, a distance of 3974.37 feet; 
Thence, SW, 89º36’12”, a distance of 1305.63 feet; 
Thence, NW, 00º23’14”, a distance of 1313.36 feet; 
Thence, SW, 89º36’48”, a distance of 1277.31 feet; 
Thence, NW, 01º21’48”, a distance of 2590.50 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
Containing 192.54 acres, more or less. 
 
AS SHOWN ON ATTACHED “EXHIBIT A” 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE SAID GRANTORS HAVE SET THEIR HAND AND 
SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF ________, 2024.   
 
 
____________________________ 
NAME 
 
 
____________________________ 
NAME 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
EXHIBIT A 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
     ) ss 
COUNTY OF SIERRA  )  
 
 
THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS 
______ DAY OF _________, 2024, BY _________________________________. 
 
 
 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES _____________ ______________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
     ) ss 
COUNTY OF SIERRA  )  
 
 
THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS 
______ DAY OF _________, 2024, BY _________________________________. 
 
 
 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES _____________ ______________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
     ) ss 
COUNTY OF SIERRA  )  
 
 
THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS 
______ DAY OF _________, 2024, BY _________________________________. 
 
 
 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES _____________ ______________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
     ) ss 
COUNTY OF SIERRA  )  
 
 
THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS 
______ DAY OF _________, 2024, BY _________________________________. 
 
 
 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES _____________ ______________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
 
 



RIGHT OF WAY EASEMENT 
 
Maeci Woolf-Smyth, Ronald Woolf, Fred Woolf, and Stephen B. Woolf, for 
consideration provided, the sufficiency of which is hereby expressly recognized, grant to 
the White Sands Missile Range a perpetual easement and right of way along, over and 
across a portion of the following described real estate situate in Sierra County, New 
Mexico, as depicted and highlighted on the attached map marked as Exhibit A, to use the 
same as a roadway and for utility lines and facilities: 
 
A parcel of land being the NW1/4 and the NE1/4 of the SW1/4 of Section 28, Township 
12 South, Range 2 East, of the N.M.P.M., located in Sierra County, New Mexico, being 
more particularly described as follows, to-wit;  
 
Beginning at the NW Corner, 
 
Thence, NE, 88º01’53”, a distance of 2542.35 feet; 
Thence, SW, 01º37’20”, a distance of 3974.37 feet; 
Thence, SW, 89º36’12”, a distance of 1305.63 feet; 
Thence, NW, 00º23’14”, a distance of 1313.36 feet; 
Thence, SW, 89º36’48”, a distance of 1277.31 feet; 
Thence, NW, 01º21’48”, a distance of 2590.50 feet to the point of beginning. 
 
Containing 192.54 acres, more or less. 
 
AS SHOWN ON ATTACHED “EXHIBIT A” 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, THE SAID GRANTORS HAVE SET THEIR HAND AND 
SEAL THIS _______ DAY OF ________, 2024.   
 
 
____________________________ 
NAME 
 
 
____________________________ 
NAME 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
EXHIBIT A 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
     ) ss 
COUNTY OF SIERRA  )  
 
 
THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS 
______ DAY OF _________, 2024, BY _________________________________. 
 
 
 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES _____________ ______________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
     ) ss 
COUNTY OF SIERRA  )  
 
 
THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS 
______ DAY OF _________, 2024, BY _________________________________. 
 
 
 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES _____________ ______________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
     ) ss 
COUNTY OF SIERRA  )  
 
 
THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS 
______ DAY OF _________, 2024, BY _________________________________. 
 
 
 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES _____________ ______________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
STATE OF NEW MEXICO ) 
     ) ss 
COUNTY OF SIERRA  )  
 
 
THE FOREGOING INSTRUMENT WAS ACKNOWLEDGED BEFORE ME THIS 
______ DAY OF _________, 2024, BY _________________________________. 
 
 
 
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES _____________ ______________________________ 
       NOTARY PUBLIC 
 
 
 





















































































































































































































 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Resolution No.  110-251 

A Budget/Line-Item Adjustment Resolution Increase Revenue and Expense in 
Funds 609 and 629. 

 
Whereas, the Board of Sierra County Commissioners, meeting in regular public 
session June 25th, 2024, deem it necessary to increase in the said line items in the 
budget; 
 
Whereas, revenue needs to be increased to account for additional GRT and Title III 
funding and expenses need to be increased to expend funding for projects;  
 
Therefore Be lt Resolved, that the Sierra County Board of Commissioners hereby 
move to implement the Iine item adjustments in the FY 2023-2024 Operating 
Budget as described below: 
 
Increase Revenue: 
609-0 -1348 Gross Receipts  $3,000.00 
629-0 – 1654 Title III $49,867.07 

 
Increase Expense :  
609-00-2225 Supplies  $7,846.00 
629-03-2235 Title III $5,000.00 

 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 25th DAY OF JUNE 2024. 
 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS SIERRA COUNTY, NEW MEXICO  
  
 
   ____________________________ 
ATTEST:   TRAVIS DAY, COMMISSIONER 
 
 

State of New Mexico County of Sierra 

Shelly K. Trujillo 
County Clerk 
575-894-2840 

Candace Chavez 
County Treasurer 

575-894-3524 

Michael Huston 
County Assessor 

575-894-2589 

 Joshua Baker 
County Sheriff 
575-894-9150 

Tom Pestak 
Probate Judge 
575-740-4900 

James Paxon 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Hank Hopkins 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Travis Day 
Commissioner 
575-894-6215 

Amber Vaughn, County Manager 
575-894-6215 voice 575-894-9548 fax 

 

1712 N. Date, Suite D 
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 

 



   ____________________________ 
   HANK HOPKINS COMMISSIONER 
 
 
_____________________________ ____________________________ 
SHELLY K. TRUJILLO, COUNTY CLERK JAMES PAXON, COMMISSIONER 
 
 
 
 
 
 



SIERRA COUNTY  
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO.  110-252

ADOPTING THE FY 2025-2029 INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County, met in a regular meeting on 
June 25, 2024, at 10:00 A.M. in the Sierra County Administration Office, 1712 N. Date Street, 
Truth or Consequences, NM 87901; and,  

WHEREAS, the County of Sierra recognizes that the financing of public capital projects has 
become a major concern in New Mexico and nationally; and 

WHEREAS, in times of scarce resources, it is necessary to find new financing mechanism and 
maximize the use of existing resources; and 

WHEREAS, systematic capital improvement planning is an effective tool for communities to 
define their development needs, establish priorities and pursue concrete actions and strategies to 
achieve necessary project development; and 

WHEREAS, this process contributes to local and regional efforts in project identification and 
selection in short- and long-range capital planning efforts; and 

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to submit this Infrastructure Capital Improvement Plan to include 
the attached list of projects in the County's short and long-range capital planning efforts. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNTY OF SIERRA THAT: 

1. The County of Sierra has adopted the attached Infrastructure Capital
 Improvement Plan for FY 2025-2029; and

2. It is intended that the plan is a working document and is the first of many
steps toward improving rational, long –range planning and budgeting for
New Mexico’s infrastructure.

3. This Resolution supersedes all previous resolutions relating to the
Infrastructural Capital Improvements Plan.



APPROVED, ADOPTED AND PASSED on this _____ day of June 25, 2024. 

 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

OF SIERRA COUNTY 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Travis Day, Chairman  
 
______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chairman 
 
______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 
 
 
 
 







SIERRA COUNTY 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 

RESOLUTION NO.  110-253

RESOLUTION RECOGNIZING THE SIERRA COUNTY BEHAVIORAL HEALTH AND WELLNESS 
COLLABORATIVE (SCBHWC) AS THE RECOGNIZED HEALTH COUNCIL 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra County met upon notice of a duly 
noticed regular County Commission Meeting on April 16, 2024, at 10:00 A.M. in the Sierra County 
Administration Building, 1712 N. Date Street, Truth or Consequences, NM 87901; and, 

WHEREAS, pursuant to NMSA 1978 Section 4-38-1 (1884) the powers of a county as a body 
politic and corporate shall be exercised by a board of county commissioners; and, 

WHEREAS, Section 4-37-1 et seq. NMSA 1978 provides that counties may adopt those 
resolutions and ordinances, not inconsistent with statutory or constitutional limitations placed on 
counties, to discharge those powers necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the 
health, promote the prosperity and improve the morals, order, comfort and convenience of the 
county and its inhabitants; and, 

WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners recognizes the critical importance of behavioral 
health and wellness initiatives in promoting the overall well-being of our community members; 
and 

WHEREAS,  NMSA 1978 § 24-1J-4 (2019) of the County and Tribal Health Councils Act 
authorizes this Board to recognize only a single community-based health planning council to 
identify and address local health needs and priorities; and, 

WHEREAS, the Sierra County Behavioral Health and Wellness Collaborative (SCBHWC) has 
served as a dedicated partner in advancing the goals of our community's health and wellness 
agenda, working tirelessly to foster collaboration among local stakeholders, healthcare providers, 
and community organizations; and 

WHEREAS,  the Board of County Commissioners acknowledges the significant contributions of 
the SCBHWC in providing education and resources to the community, and promoting a culture of 
wellness and support throughout Sierra County. 



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of County Commissioners of Sierra 
County, that: 

1. The Sierra County Behavioral Health and Wellness Collaborative (SCBHWC) is hereby 
recognized as the officially designated Health Council for Sierra County for the purposes 
of the County and Tribal Health Councils Act, NMSA 1978, Section 24-1J-4(A)(1).   

2. The Board of County Commissioners expresses its sincere appreciation to the SCBHWC 
for its unwavering dedication, tireless efforts, and outstanding contributions to the health 
and well-being of Sierra County residents. 

3. The Board of County Commissioners commits to continue supporting the SCBHWC in its 
mission to identify and address local health needs and priorities. 

 

 

APPROVED, ADOPTED, AND PASSED on this 21st day of May, 2024. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF SIERRA COUNTY 
 
______________________________________ 
 Travis Day, Chair 
 
 
______________________________________ 
James Paxon, Vice-Chair 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
 
Attest: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Shelly K. Trujillo 
Sierra County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Now therefore, be it resolved in official session that County of Sierra determines, resolves, and orders as 
follows: 

That the project for this Cooperative agreement is adopted and has a priority standing. 

The agreement terminates on December 31, 2025 and the County of Sierra incorporates all the 
agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, and all 
such covenants, agreements and understandings have been merged into the written agreement. 

NOW therefore, be it resolved by the County of Sierra to enter into Cooperative Agreement Control Number 
HW2L100614 with the New Mexico Department of Transportation for LGRF Project for year 2024 – 2025 for the 
chip seal, re-chip seal, fog seal, pothole and shoulder repair, engineering & project management, culvert, drainage 
improvements, and road surface on various County roads to improve surface conditions. B050 Animas from 
NM187 W approx. 6.4 mi, C033 Calle Del Norte from NM 142 W approx. 10.9 mi, A032 Harding from A026 
Tulrosa S approx. 8.9 mi, within the control of the County of Sierra in Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 

Passed, Approved, and Adopted this 25th day of June 2024. 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS SIERRA 
COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 

TRAVIS DAY, COMMISSIONER 
ATTEST: 

HANK HOPKINS, COMMISSIONER 

SHELLY TRUJILLO, COUNTY CLERK JIM PAXON, COMMISSIONER 



 

 

RESOLUTION 110-255

County of Sierra  

PARTICIPATION IN LOCAL GOVERNMENT ROAD FUND PROGRAM 
ADMINISTERED BY 

 NEW MEXICO DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

WHEREAS, the County of Sierra and the New Mexico Department of 
Transportation have entered into a joint and coordinated effort in Cooperative 
Agreement. 

WHEREAS, the total cost of the project will be ($213,535.00) to be 
funded in proportional share by the parties hereto as follows: 

a. New Mexico Department of Transportation’s share shall be 75% or
($160,151.00)

and 

b. County of Sierra’s proportional matching share shall be 25% or
($53,384.00)

TOTAL PROJECT COST IS ($213,535.00)

County of Sierra shall pay all costs, which exceed the total amount of 
($213,535.00). 

       State of New Mexico       County of Sierra 

  Shelley Trujillo 
County Clerk 
575-894-2840 

Candace Chavez 
County Treasurer 

575-894-3524 

Michael D. Huston 
County Assessor 

575-894-2589 

   
  

Thomas Pestak 
Probate Judge 
575-894-2840 

Jim Paxon 
District 1 

575-894-6215 

Travis Day 
District 2 

575-894-6215 

Hank Hophins 
District 3 

575-894-6215 

  Joshua Baker 
Sheriff 

575-894-9150 

Amber Vaughn 
County Manager 

575-894-6215, 575-894-9548 fax 

1712 N. Date 
Truth or Consequences, New Mexico 87901 



Now therefore, be it resolved in official session that County of Sierra 
determines, resolves, and orders as follows: 

 
That the project for this Cooperative agreement is adopted and has a 

priority standing. 
 
The agreement terminates on December 31, 2025 and the County of 

Sierra incorporates all the agreements, covenants, and understandings 
between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, and all such 
covenants, agreements and understandings have been merged into the written 
agreement. 

 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the County of Sierra to enter into 
Cooperative Agreement Control Number HW2 L100609 with the New Mexico 
Department of Transportation for LGRF Project for year 2024/2025 for the re-
chip seal, fog seal, pothole and shoulder repair, engineering & project 
management, culvert, drainage improvements, and road surface work on 
various County roads to improve surface conditions in C033 Calle Del Norte 
from NM 142 W approx. 10.9 mi, B042 Chili plant from NM 187 W approx. 2.1 
mi, within the control of the County of Sierra in Truth or Consequences, New 
Mexico. 

  
 

 
 
PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 25th   day of June 2024. 
 
 
       
 

Board of County Commissioners  
 
      _________________________________  
      Travis Day, Commissioner 
 
 
Attest:     __________________________________   
      Hank Hopkins, Commissioner 
 
 
      __________________________________  
      Jim Paxon, Commissioner  
 
________________________________  
Shelly Trujillo, County Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





Now therefore, be it resolved in official session that County of Sierra determines, resolves, and orders as 
follows: 

That the project for this Cooperative agreement is adopted and has a priority standing. 

The agreement terminates on December 31, 2025 and the County of Sierra incorporates all the 
agreements, covenants, and understandings between the parties hereto concerning the subject matter hereof, and all 
such covenants, agreements and understandings have been merged into the written agreement. 

NOW therefore, be it resolved by the County of Sierra to enter into Cooperative Agreement Control Number 
HW2L100589 with the New Mexico Department of Transportation for LGRF Project for year 2024 – 2025 for the 
re-chip seal, fog seal, pothole repair and shoulder repair, engineering & project management, culverts, drainage 
improvements, and road surface on various County roads to improve surface conditions. B050 Animas from NM 
187 W approx. 6.4 mi, B041E. Grand Percha from NM 187 E approx. 1.2 mi, C005 Rancho Del Chiz from C002 St. 
Cloud E approx. 3.4 mi, within the control of the County of Sierra in Truth or Consequences, New Mexico. 

Passed, Approved, and Adopted this 25th day of June 2024 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS SIERRA 
COUNTY, NEW MEXICO 

TRAVIS DAY, COMMISSIONER 
ATTEST: 

HANK HOPKINS, COMMISSIONER 

SHELLY TRUJILLO, COUNTY CLERK JIM PAXON, COMMISSIONER 


